
 

 

1 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE ANNUITY AND PENSION BOARD 

EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE 

789 N. WATER ST. (Employes’ Retirement System) 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2021 – 9:00 A.M. 

 

Special Notice: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the meeting will be held remotely via video 

conference. Instructions on how to observe the meeting will be available on ERS’s website 

(www.cmers.com) prior to the meeting. 

 

Please note and observe the following remote attendance etiquette to ensure a smooth and 

productive meeting:  

• In order to cut down on background noise, participants in the meeting should put their phones 

on mute when they are not participating.  

• At the start of the meeting, the Chairman will announce the names of the members of the Board 

present on the call, as well as anyone else who will be participating.  

• Please request to be recognized by the Chairman if you would like to speak.  

• Those participating on the call should identify themselves whenever they speak, and should 

ensure that the other participants on the call can hear them clearly. 

 

REGULAR MEETING  

I. Approval of Minutes. 

A. Regular Meeting Held October 26, 2021. 

 

II. Chief Investment Officer Report. 

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(e), Wisconsin State Statutes, to deliberate or 

negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 

specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. The 

Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the closed session. 

A. Approval of Abbott Capital Private Equity Investors 2022, L.P. Side Letter. 

III. Investment Committee Report. 

A. Approval of Fixed Income Structure. 

 

IV. New Business. 

A. Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (October). 

B. Conference Requests – November 2021 Board Meeting. 

C. Pension Board Election Results – At Large Member Election. 

D. Proposed 2022 Board and Committee Meeting Dates. 

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (E.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with 

legal counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or 

is likely to become involved.  The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the 

closed session. 



 

 

2 

 

E. Consider and potentially take action regarding DDR Benefits for Non-compliance 

with Re-exam Requirements of MCC-36 – DeRonn D. Gillum. 

F. Review of Board Rule II.A.2. 

 

V. Medical Reports. 

 

A. All Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (November). 

 

VI. Unfinished Business. 

 

A. Pending Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. 

B. Pending Legislation Report. 

C. Executive Director’s Report – Inventory of ERS Projects. 

 

VII. Informational.  

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with 

legal counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or 

is likely to become involved. The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the 

closed session. 

 

A. Pending Litigation Report.  

 B. Conferences. 

C. Class Action Income 2021 YTD. 

D. Adjusted Quarterly Cost Basis of Equity. 

E. Report on Bills. 

F. Deployment of Assets. 

G. Securities Lending Revenue and Budget Report. 

H. Preliminary Performance Report/Asset and Manager Allocation Pie Charts. 

 

 

MEETING REMINDERS 

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE MEETING   

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 09, 2021 – 9:00 A.M. 

789 N. WATER ST. 

 

ADMINISTRATION & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021 – 9:00 A.M. 

789 N. WATER ST. 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE ANNUITY AND PENSION BOARD  

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2021 – 9:00 A.M. 

789 N. WATER ST. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. Regular Meeting Held October 26, 2021. 

 

 

 



 

EMPLOYES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE 

ANNUITY AND PENSION BOARD 

 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

held October 26, 2021 via teleconference during COVID-19 

 

The meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m. 

 

Board Members Present:   Matthew Bell (excused) 

     Joshua Benson 

James Campbell 

 Deborah Ford 

Molly King 

     Tom Klusman  

Rudolph Konrad, Chair 

Nik Kovac 

  

Retirement System Staff Present: Jerry Allen, Executive Director 

Melody Johnson, Deputy Director 

     Daniel Gopalan, Chief Financial Officer 

     David Silber, Chief Investment Officer 

Jeff Shober, Chief Technology Officer 

     Erich Sauer, Deputy Chief Investment Officer 

Anthony Lubarsky, Pension Investment Analyst 

Gust Petropoulos, Deputy Director Disability 

Jan Wills, Board Stenographer     

 

Others Present: Patrick McClain, City Attorney’s Office; Terry Siddiqui, DS Consulting, Inc., seven 

members of the public called in to the meeting. 

Regular Meeting.  

Approval of Minutes.  

Regular Meeting Held September 29, 2021. It was moved by Mr. Benson, seconded by Mr. 

Campbell, and unanimously carried, to approve the Regular Meeting Held September 29, 2021.  

 

Chief Investment Officer Report. Mr. Silber reminded the Board members of the November 11, 2021 

Investment Committee Meeting. He said Callan will recommend candidates for the Hedge Fund-of-

Funds Manager search. He said Callan is also putting together a Fixed Income Structure Review for 

the Fund’s 23% Fixed Income allocation and will be providing a Real Estate Review. Staff will be 

providing the Committee with the 3rd Quarter Performance Report. As a matter of information, Board 

members received the October 26, 2021 Performance Update. Mr. Sauer noted the Fund as of 

September 30, 2021, had a value of $6.03 billion. He said the Fund return of -0.2%, net of fees, 

outperformed the blended benchmark by 54 basis points. Mr. Sauer commented that the Fund’s returns 

outperformed in the year-to-date, one-, five-, 10- and 20-year periods, and matched in the 15-year 

period, net of fees. He said the September relative performance drivers were Manager Selection with 

Private Equity adding 56 basis points, William Blair detracting 12 basis points, and Style Bias adding 

15 basis points, primarily from small and value. Mr. Sauer stated as of October 22, the Fund return 

was 2.2% in October, bringing the year-to-date return to 15.9%, net of fees. He noted the Fund’s 

approximate value is $6.16 billion and 12 out of the Fund’s 15 active mandates are outperforming year 

to date, net of fees. Mr. Sauer said the Total Fund, along with all of the Fund’s assets classes, are 



10/26/21 

2 

exceeding their respective benchmarks year to date, net of fees. He commented that year-to-date, the 

Fund has generated investment gains of $871.1 million, paid benefits and expenses of $344.1 million 

and received contributions of $101.9 million. Mr. Sauer said the monthly withdrawals for October were 

$8.5 million from the NT S&P 500 Index, $7 million from DFA US Small Cap Value, $5.5 million 

from Polen, $5 million from BlackRock Global Alpha Tilts, $4 million from Earnest, $3 million from 

BlackRock R1000 Value, $3 million from CastleArk, and $2 million from DFA US Large Cap Value. 

He also commented on a proxy vote for Prologis, noting the only change to vote on was the election 

of a different arrangement for the performance fee. He said the change was only to the timing of the 

fee. It gave investors the option for a third of the performance fee to hit each year instead of a three-

year fee all at one time. Mr. Sauer said Callan noted this better aligns the incentives to keep the 

performance of the Fund consistent over time.  

 

New Business. 

 

Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (September). Mr. Allen presented the following 

activity for the months of September 2021. 

 

Active Death Benefits reported    $0.00 

 

Deferred Death      $37,721.83 

 

 Deferred Death – Member Only Refund  $0.00 

 

Ordinary Death Benefits reported   $29,875.81  

  

 Retired Death Benefits reported   $90,361.53 

 

Survivor Death – Termination Benefits reported $8,496.39 

   

 Refund of Member Contributions paid   $96,144.62 

 

 It was moved by Ms. Ford, seconded by Mr. Campbell, and unanimously carried, to approve 

the Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (September). 

 

 Conference Requests – October 2021 Board Meeting.  

 

James Campbell 2022 Vision, Insights, and 

 Perspectives Conference 

Sponsor:   Institutional Real Estates, Inc.     

Location:   Carlsbad, CA   

Date:     January 24 – 26, 2022    

Estimated Cost:  $2,000.00 

 

 It was moved by Ms. King, seconded by Mr. Klusman, and unanimously carried, to approve 

the Conference Requests – October 2021 Board Meeting.  

 

 Proposed 2022 Board and Committee Meeting Dates. Staff noted the proposed 2022 Board 

Meetings are tentatively proposed for the 4th Tuesday of the month instead of the 4th Monday of the 

month due to a Board member’s conflict with his meetings on the 4th Monday of the month. Mr. 

Klusman requested the proposed 2022 Board and Committee Meeting Dates be held until the 

November 23, 2021 Board Meeting pending the results of the November 5, 2021 At Large Member 

Election. He thought the newly-elected candidate might have some meeting date conflicts.  



10/26/21 

3 

 

It was moved by Mr. Klusman, seconded by Mr. Benson, and unanimously carried, to hold the 

Proposed 2022 Board and Committee Meeting Dates until the November Board meeting.   

 

Medical Reports.  

 

 All Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (October). Staff 

presented certifications (October 2021) of the Fire and Police Medical Panel Physicians and the 

Medical Council relative to Duty & Ordinary Disability Retirement benefits as follows:   

 

Police – Re-examinations – Duty   Recommendation 

 

Willie Huerta      Approval 

 

Fire – Re-examinations – Duty    Recommendation 

 

Kenneth Berget     Approval 

Bradley Davis      Approval 

Derek Geppert      Approval 

Martin Kozlowski     Approval 

Mark Tesch      Approval 

Phillip Quigley      Approval 

        

Police – Re-examinations – Ordinary   Recommendation 

 

Lisa Heath      Approval    

 

GC – Re-examinations – Duty    Recommendation 

 

Augusto Gamboa     Approval  

   

GC – Re-examinations – Ordinary   Recommendation 

 

Harold Cross      Approval 

Kelly Pope      Approval    

          

It was moved by Mr. Klusman, seconded by Mr. Kovac, and unanimously carried, to approve 

the Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (October). 

Unfinished Business. 

 Pending and Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. As a matter of information, 

Board members received the Pending Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. Mr. McClain said 

there were no outstanding Legal Opinions. Staff noted the service requests for the Abbott Capital 

Private Equity Investors regarding the Limited Partner Agreement and the LaSalle Property Fund have 

both been assigned to outside legal counsel for review.  

 Pending Legislation Report. As a matter of information, Board members received the 

Pending Legislation Report. Staff noted the communication transmitting the report of the Mayor’s Task 

Force on the City of Milwaukee’s Pension System was presented on October 06, 2021 in closed 

session. Staff noted there was no further action on the report but was referred to the Steering & Rules 

Committee. Staff said they are watching it closely to see if there is further draft legislation. Mr. Konrad 



10/26/21 

4 

accepted the report and placed it on file. 

  Executive Director’s Report – Inventory of ERS Projects. As a matter of information, Staff 

presented a report on the ERS projects and updated the Board on ERS activities, a copy of which is on 

file with the ERS.  

Informational.  
 

Mr. Konrad advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (1), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with legal 

counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is 

likely to become involved. The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the closed 

session. 

 

It was moved by Mr. Benson and seconded by Ms. Ford, to convene in closed session. The 

motion prevailed by the following roll call vote. AYES: Mses. Ford and King; Messrs. Benson, 

Campbell, Klusman, Kovac, and Konrad. NOES: None. 

 

The Board convened in closed session at 9:29 a.m. 

 

The Board reconvened in open session at 9:51 a.m. 

 

 The following is a list of informational items: 

 

1) Pending Litigation Report. 

2) Conferences. 

3) Class Action Income 2021 YTD. 

4) Minutes of the Investment Committee Meeting Held September 2, 2021. 

5) Minutes of the Administration and Operations Committee Meeting Held September 

22, 2021. 

 

The following is a list of activities since the last Board meeting, copies sent with meeting notice 

and attached to minutes: 

 

6) Report on Bills. 

7) Deployment of Assets. 

8) Securities Lending Revenue and Budget Report. 

9) Preliminary Performance Report/Asset and Manager Allocation Pie Charts. 

 

It was moved by Mr. Klusman and seconded by Ms. Ford to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Konrad 

adjourned the meeting at 9:52 a.m. 

 

 

 

Bernard J. Allen 

Secretary and Executive Director 

 

 

(NOTE: All proceedings of the Annuity and Pension Board Meetings and related Committee Meetings 

are recorded. All recordings and material mentioned herein are on file in the office of the Employes’ 

Retirement System, 789 N. Water Street, Suite 300.) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

II. 

 

CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER REPORT 

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(e), Wisconsin State Statutes, to deliberate or 

negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified 

public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. The Board may 

then vote to reconvene in open session following the closed session. 

A. Approval of Abbott Capital Private Equity Investors 2022, L.P. Side Letter. 



Summary 
The ERS Fund had an estimated return of 2.2% in October, gross of fees, that underperformed 
the blended benchmark by approximately 10 basis points. The Fund’s style bias detracted from 
relative performance, while manager selection contributed to relative performance. As of 
November 15, 2021, the Fund’s estimated value was $6.19 billion, which represented a year-
to-date capital market gain of approximately $932.8 million. 
 

October Relative Performance Summary 
 

Manager Selection (+13 basis points) 
Outperformance within the Fund’s Real Assets allocation was responsible for the positive 
relative performance within this category during the month. Within Real Assets, 
outperformance was the result of a very strong quarterly return reported by Prologis, one of the 
Fund’s core real estate managers. Prologis invests solely in the industrial/logistics sector, and its 
reported return of 11.8% was driven primarily by appreciation, as record demand in the logistics 
market pushed vacancy rates to all-time lows. Rent growth in the space remained strong, and 
strong investor capital flows pushed cap rates down, both of which are reflected in higher 
appraisals. This outperformance was partially offset by underperformance within the Fund’s 
Public Equity allocation. While the Fund’s Public Equity return of 4.1% in October was very 
good in terms of total return, it trailed the Public Equity benchmark return of 4.9%. While most 
of this underperformance came from Style Bias (see Style Bias section below), the largest 
detractor within this category was Brandes, the Fund’s international value manager who 
incidentally is benchmarked to a core benchmark. Brandes’ 0.4% return underperformed its 
benchmark by 2.0%. This underperformance was driven by stock selection in the healthcare, 
REIT, and materials sectors.  
 
Broad Category Group Allocation (+1 basis points) 
The Fund went into the month with a significant overweight allocation to Private Equity and a 
significant underweight allocation to Absolute Return. The returns of both the Absolute Return 
benchmark, which represents a premium above the 90-day Treasury bill interest rate, and the 
Private Equity benchmark, which only reports its return at quarter-end, were lower than the 
Fund’s blended benchmark, which benefitted from the strong stock market returns in October. 
As a result, the benefit of being underweight Absolute Return was mostly offset by the Fund’s 
overweight to Private Equity.  
 
Style Bias (-24 basis points) 
The Fund’s strategic Small Cap and Value Biases within Public Equity both detracted from 
relative performance during the month. U.S. value stocks, as represented by the Russell 3000 
Value index, had a return of 5.0%, which trailed the 8.4% return of the Russell 3000 Growth 
index. Similarly, U.S. small cap stocks, as represented by the Russell 2000 index, had a return 
of 4.3%, which trailed the 6.9% return of U.S. large cap stocks, as represented by the Russell 
1000 index. Furthermore, non-U.S. public equity markets underperformed the U.S. broad 
market, and as a result the Fund’s exposure to non-U.S. public equity also ended up detracting 
from the Fund’s returns. 
 



KEY ATTRIBUTION DESCRIPTIONS 
 
Broad Category Group Allocation – This compares the Fund’s actual Asset Class allocation to its 
policy benchmark allocation.  If the Fund’s actual Asset Class allocation was always equal to the 
policy benchmark allocations of 44% Public Equity, 23% Fixed Income, 13% Real Assets, 10% 
Absolute Return, and 10% Private Equity, this amount would be 0.  In reality, market movements 
mean that the Fund almost always has some deviation from the policy benchmark. The impact of this 
deviation is measured here.  
 
Deviations are usually within the allowed range. If market movements cause an asset class to move 
outside of an allowed range, triggering a rebalance, the Board would be notified, and the calculation in 
this section would be adjusted to incorporate the impact of the rebalance.      
 
If the Fund is overweight (underweight) an Asset Class that has a higher (lower) return than the Fund’s 
Blended Benchmark return, the contribution to return is positive (negative). Similarly, if the Fund is 
underweight (overweight) an Asset Class that has a lower (higher) return than the Fund’s Blended 
Benchmark return, the contribution is also positive (negative). Note: The actual return of the Fund and 
its investment managers does not impact this amount.   
 
Manager Selection – This compares the return of each of the Fund’s investment managers to the 
manager’s designated benchmark.  If all of the Fund’s investment managers delivered a return equal to 
their designated benchmark, the amount in this category would be 0.   
 
If a manager outperforms (underperforms) its designated benchmark, the contribution to return is 
positive (negative). 
 
Style Bias – This compares the Fund’s investment managers’ designated benchmarks to the Asset 
Class benchmarks designated by the Fund. If all of the Fund’s investment managers had a designated 
benchmark that was the same as the Asset Class benchmark designated by the Fund, this amount 
would be 0. For example, if every public equity manager’s designated benchmark was the ACWI IMI, 
and every fixed income manager’s designated benchmark was the Barclays U.S. Aggregate, the 
amount in this category would be 0. However, many of the Fund’s investment managers have a 
designated benchmark that is reflective of their specific mandate rather than the Asset Class 
benchmark designated by the Fund. The impact of this deviation is measured here. 
 
If an investment manager’s designated benchmark outperforms (underperforms) the designated Asset 
Class benchmark, the contribution is positive (negative).  Note: The actual return of the Fund and its 
investment managers does not impact this amount. 
 
Active Return – This amount is the sum of the 3 components described above.  The Total Active 
Return amount equals the difference between the ERS Fund Return and the Fund’s Blended 
Benchmark Return. 
 
 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. 

 

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

A. Approval of Fixed Income Structure. 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IV. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Retirements, Death Claims, and Refunds (October). 

B. Conference Requests – November 2021 Board Meeting. 

C. Pension Board Election Results – At Large Member Election. 

D. Proposed 2022 Board and Committee Meeting Dates. 

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (E.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with legal 

counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely 

to become involved.  The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the closed session. 

 

E. Consider and potentially take action regarding DDR Benefits for Non-compliance with 

Re-exam Requirements of MCC-36 – DeRonn D. Gillum. 

F. Review of Board Rule II.A.2. 

 















2022   Board and Committee Meeting Dates 

   All meetings begin at 9:00 a.m. unless otherwise noted. 

 

  

January  TBD Investment 

26/27 Board (Wednesday/Thursday) 

 

February  10 Investment (Thursday)  

22 Board (Tuesday)     

 

March  17 A&O  (Thursday) 

29 Board (Tuesday)  

 

April  14 Investment (Thursday) 

27 Board (Wednesday) 

 

May   24 Board (Tuesday) 

 

June   09 Investment (Thursday) 

15 A&O (Wednesday) 

29/30 Board (Wednesday/Thursday) 

     

July   27 Board (Wednesday) 

     

September  08 Investment (Thursday) 

21 A&O (Wednesday) 

28/29 Board (Wednesday/Thursday) 

 

October  25 Board (Tuesday) 

     

November  10 Investment (Thursday) 

23 Board (Wednesday) 

       

December  08 Investment (Thursday) 

20 Board (Tuesday) 

21 A&O  

 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

4. MEMBER means any person eligible for membership as follows who has not 
otherwise waived, terminated or been denied membership: 

 
a. Any employe who is entitled to and who elected membership at the time 

of the creation of the retirement system; 
 
b. Any person who became an employe after January 1, 1938, and who is 

eligible under the provisions of Chapter 36 and who is: 
 

i. a full-time employe; 
ii. a part-time employe eligible for membership under the Board's Rules 

and Regulations; or 
iii. an elected official who has evidenced an intention to join the ERS. 

 
6. RETIRED MEMBER means a person who had been a member but who has 

retired from the retirement system and receives a retirement allowance. 
 
Source: Milwaukee City Charter § 36-02-8; § 36-03; § 36-02-21; City Attorney Opinion Letter, November 19, 1984. 

 
7. An APPLICATION FOR DUTY DISABILITY shall consist of the Duty Disability 

Application Form, A Physician Statement, copies of appropriate Worker’s 
Compensation EB-49’s, and properly executed medical authorizations. 
 

8. An Application for Duty Disability is filed when all documentation set forth in 
I.F.7 above is submitted and certified as complete by the ERS. 

 
 
II. MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD 
 
A. NUMBER OF BOARD MEMBERS AND TERMS 
 
 The Board shall consist of: 
 

1. Three Board members to be appointed by the President of the Common 
Council subject to the confirmation of such common council for a term of 2 
years. 

 
Commencing in 1997, when terms expire for members appointed by the 
President of the Common Council, members shall be appointed for terms 
expiring the 3rd Tuesday of April 2000. Thereafter, the President of the 
Common Council shall appoint members for a term of 2 years within 60 days 
of the commencement of a new Common Council term, and then within 60 
days following 2 years of the commencement of a Common Council term. If a 
vacancy occurs in a Board position, the President shall appoint within 60 days 
after the vacancy occurs. 

 



7 | P a g e

2. The City Comptroller, ex-officio, or, in case of sickness or absence, his or her
deputy.

3. Three employe Board members who shall be members of the ERS and who
shall be elected at large by the members of the ERS for a term of 4 years
according to such rules and regulations as the Board shall adopt from time to
time to govern such election.

4. One retired Board member elected each fourth year by members of the ERS
who are retired and are receiving a retirement allowance for a term of 4 years,
which term shall begin on the first day of January following election and that
person shall serve until his or her successor has been elected and qualifies.

Source: Milwaukee City Charter 36-15-2; Rules and Regulations, II Officers and Employes)

B. SELECTION PROCESS AND ELECTIONS

1. Chair and Vice-Chair

The members of the Board shall elect from its membership at each annual
meeting a Chair and a Vice-Chair who shall serve until their successors are
elected.

Source: Milwaukee City Charter § 36-15-7; Rules and Regulations, § I.4 (a) (Officers and Employes) 

2. Employe Board Member

The following rules shall govern the election of an employe member of the
Board:

To be eligible for nomination and election, candidates must be in active
service. A regularly scheduled election to fill a Board member vacancy due to
expiration of the term of office will be held on the first Friday in November. A
special election may be called at any time to fill a vacancy which occurs due to
the removal, resignation, retirement or death of an employee Board member.
Such special election shall be conducted as determined by the Board under
rules published in the election bulletin adopted by the Board.

In the event that only two candidates file for a regularly scheduled election,
the election will be held in November. In the event there are more than two
candidates and one candidate receives one more than half the number of the
legal votes cast at the election, then the person receiving said vote shall be
declared elected to the office. In the event of failure of any one candidate to
receive one more than half the number of the legal votes cast, then the two
candidates having the highest number of votes shall have their names placed
on a ballot for a run-off election to be held five weeks after the primary



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

V. 

 

MEDICAL REPORTS  

 

 

A. All Duty & Ordinary Disability Applications & Re-examinations (November). 

 

 

 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VI. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 

A. Pending Legal Opinions and Service Requests Report. 

B. Pending Legislation Report. 

C. Executive Director’s Report – Inventory of ERS Projects. 

 

 

 









 
 

IV. Information Services 
A. Proof of Concept (POC) for FileNet to BAW Upgrade in progress. 
B. Struts Upgrade and Modernize MERITS Website in progress. 
C. MERITS & FileNet Databases Patching in process. 
D. Desktop PC Upgrade in progress. 
E. Network Infrastructure Upgrade in progress. 
F. Implement Multi-Factor Authentication Capabilities in progress. 
G. Implement Security Incident and event Management Capabilities in progress. 
H. WUG Upgrade in process. 
I. Symantec Endpoint Protection Upgrade in progress. 
J. Vulnerability Assessment - 2021 in progress.  

 

V. Administration  
 

A. The Pension Task Force final report was circulated to the Trustees.  The report makes 
no recommendations because the group by its charter was not intended to arrive at 
consensus but merely outline and analyze potential actions for consideration by the 
city with regard to pension funding and includes both financial and legal 
considerations.   

B. A draft bill for introduction to the State Legislature is being developed by a coalition 
among the City, County, Greater Milwaukee Committee and others.  This bill 
contemplates additional sales tax revenues for the City and County of Milwaukee, but 
closes the ERS to new hires.  New hires would be part of the WRS.  The draft bill also 
includes provisions for a statutory rate of return (7.25%) and amortization period (30 
years) for the unfunded liability and normal costs accrued in the future. Staff will 
report further, if the bill is introduced into the legislature. 

 
    
        



 

 

 

 
2021 - 2022 LEGISLATURE  

LRB-4525/P3 

JK&MIM:cjs 

 

 
 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 AN ACT to renumber and amend 77.70; to amend 59.875 (2) (a), 62.623 (1), 

2 66.0621 (3m), 77.76 (3) and 79.05 (2) (c); to create 40.02 (48) (am) 23., 40.02 (48) 
 

3 (am) 24., 40.21 (4g), 40.21 (4r), 59.875 (2) (c), 62.623 (3) and 77.70 (2) of the 
 

4 statutes; and to affect Laws of 1937, chapter 201, section 1 (4), Laws of 1937, 
 

5 chapter 201, section 14A (1), Laws of 1937, chapter 201, section 21, Laws of 
 

6 1937, chapter 396, section 1 (4) (e) 2m., Laws of 1937, chapter 396, section 15 
 

7 (1) and Laws of 1937, chapter 396, section 16A (1); relating to: imposing an 
 

8 additional county sales tax and requiring newly hired city and county 
 

9 employees to be enrolled in the Wisconsin Retirement System. 

 
 

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau 

This bill authorizes a county in which a first class city is located to impose a 1 
percent sales and use tax, with the revenue used to provide property tax relief and 
fund the county and city retirement systems, and requires newly hired county and 
city employees to be enrolled in the Wisconsin Retirement System. 

Additional sales and use tax 

Under current law, a county may impose a sales and use tax at the rate of 0.5 
percent of the sales price of tangible personal property, goods, and services sold or 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 2 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

 

 

 

 

used in the county. The tax may be imposed only for the purpose of reducing the 

property tax levy. 

Under the bill, a county in which a first class city is located may impose an 

additional sales and use tax at the rate of 1 percent of the sales price of tangible 

personal property, goods, and services sold or used in the county. Under the bill, the 

Department of Revenue keeps 1.75 percent of the revenue from the additional tax for 

administrative expenses. The bill requires that the remaining revenue be used as 

follows: 

1. Thirty-three percent of the revenue must be used to provide property tax 

relief, divided evenly between county and municipal property tax relief. 

2. Thirty-three and one-half percent of the revenue must be used to fund the 

county's retirement system. If the system is determined to be fully funded, then the 

revenue must be used to make investments to promote the county's financial 

sustainability, such as by addressing critical deferred maintenance backlogs and 

eliminating outdated assets. 

3. Thirty-three and one-half percent of the revenue must be used to fund the 

first class city's retirement system. If the system is determined to be fully funded, 

then the revenue must used to provide property tax relief in the first class city. 

Under the bill, if the county and city retirement systems are fully funded, the 

additional tax is repealed on October 1 of the following year. However, the county 

may extend the tax for a period of up to 20 years. If the tax is extended, the revenue 

must be used for the purposes described above. 

The bill provides that the expenditure by a municipality of the distributed tax 

revenue will not affect the municipality's payment under the expenditure restraint 

program and that the revenue and expenditures will not impact any local 

government funding formula. 

Under the bill, a county in which a first class city is located may not impose the 

additional tax unless the county contributes to its retirement system from sources 

other than the tax at least $54,663,000 in 2021 and in each year thereafter until the 

retirement system is determined by the county's actuary to be fully funded. In 

addition, no first class city may receive its share of the proceeds from the tax unless 

the city complies with all of the following: 

1. The ratio of law enforcement officers and fire fighters employed by the city 

to the city's total population in any year in which the tax is imposed is at least equal 

to the ratio, as of December 31, 2019, of law enforcement officers and fire fighters to 

the city's total population. 

2. Beginning on the first day on which the tax is imposed the city expends none 

of its general revenue on the operation, maintenance, or expansion of a rail fixed 

guideway transportation system in the city. 

3. The city contributes to its retirement system from sources other than the tax 

at least $55,200,000 in each year beginning with 2021 and ending with 2023 and at 

least $84,500,000 in 2024 and in each year thereafter until the retirement system is 

determined by the city's actuary to be fully funded. 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 2021 - 2022 Legislature - 3 - 

 

 

 

 

 

Enrollment of new employees in Wisconsin Retirement System 

Under current law, Milwaukee County and the City of Milwaukee each operate 
their own retirement system, providing retirement benefits to individuals employed 
by the county or city. This bill provides that employees initially hired by Milwaukee 
County and the City of Milwaukee after December 31, 2022, may not be covered 
under the county's or city's retirement system. Instead, the bill requires that these 
newly hired employees be covered under the Wisconsin Retirement System. 

The bill also prohibits an employee organization and employer from collectively 
bargaining over employer contributions to a retirement system in a county with a 
population of 750,000 or more or employer contributions to a retirement system of 
a first class city. 

Because this bill relates to public employee retirement or pensions, it may be 
referred to the Joint Survey Committee on Retirement Systems for a report to be 
printed as an appendix to the bill. 

For further information see the state and local fiscal estimate, which will be 
printed as an appendix to this bill. 

 

 
 

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do 
enact as follows: 

 

1 SECTION 1. 40.02 (48) (am) 23. of the statutes is created to read: 
 

2 40.02 (48) (am) 23. AU p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  

u n d e r  s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  a fire fighter, sheriff, undersheriff, deputy 

sheriff, or jailer 
 

3 in a county with a population of at least 750,000 who is initially hired by the county 
 

4 after December 31, 2022. 
 

5 SECTION 2. 40.02 (48) (am) 24. of the statutes is created to read: 
 

6 40.02 (48) (am) 24. U p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  

u n d e r  s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  a  police officer, fire fighter, or jailer in a 1st 

class city in a 
 

7 county with a population of at least 750,000 who is initially hired by the city after 

8 December 31, 2022. 

9 SECTION 3. 40.21 (4g) of the statutes is created to read: 
 

10 40.21 (4g)U p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  

7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  a  county having a population of 750,000 or more that is 

covered by 
 

11 a retirement system established under chapter 201, laws of 1937, is a participating 
 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 4 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

 

12 employer with respect to (a) any eligible employee who was never an employee of the 

county on 
 

or before December 31, 2022, and who is hired by the county after that date., and (b) any 

eligible employee who was employed prior to December 31, 2022 that has withdrawn their 

contributions to the retirement system  Such a county is not a participating employer with 

respect to any employee eligible to participate in a retirement plan established by a 

county under the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990. 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 5 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 5 - 
 

 

1 SECTION 4. 40.21 (4r) of the statutes is created to read: 
 

2 40.21 (4r)U p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  

7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  a  1st class city covered by a retirement system established 

under 
 

3 chapter 396, laws of 1937, is a participating employer with respect to any eligible 

employee 
 

4 who, as of December 31, 2022, had never been an employee of any of the following 
 

5 entities, and who is hired after that date: 
 

6 (a) The city. 
 

7 (b) A housing authority in a 1st class city in a county with a population of at 8

 least 750,000. 

9 (c) A redevelopment authority in a 1st class city in a county with a population 
 

10 of at least 750,000. 
 

11 (d) The Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District. 
 

12 (e) The board of a public school district in a 1st class city in a county with a 
 

13 population of at least 750,000. 
 

14 (f) A special purpose district created under subch. II of. ch. 229 for which the 
 

15 sole sponsoring municipality is a 1st class city in a county with a population of at least 

16 750,000. 

****NOTE: I have moved the effective date forward two years. Please let me know 

if that is not consistent with your intent. 

 
 

17 SECTION 5. 59.875 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read: 
 

18 59.875 (2) (a) Beginning on July 1, 2011, and ending on December 31, 2022, 

u p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a )  

in 
 

19 any employee retirement system of a county, except as otherwise provided in a 
 

20 collective bargaining agreement entered into under subch. IV of ch. 111 and except 
 

21 as provided in par. (b), employees shall pay half of all actuarially required 
 

22 contributions for funding benefits under the retirement system. The employer may 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 4 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 4 

 

 

 

1 not pay on behalf of an employee any of the employee's share of the actuarially 
 

2 required contributions. 
 

3 SECTION 6. 59.875 (2) (c) of the statutes is created to read: 
 

4 59.875 (2) (c) U p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  

s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  beginning on January 1, 2023, in any employee 

retirement 
 

5 system of a county, except as otherwise provided in a collective bargaining agreement 
 

6 entered into under subch. IV of ch. 111 and except as provided in par. (b), employees 
 

7 shall pay half of all actuarially required normal cost contributions for funding 
 

8 benefits under the retirement system. The employer may not pay on behalf of an 
 

9 employee any of the employee's share of the actuarially required contributions. 

TheR e g a r d l e s s  o f  f u n d i n g  s t a t u s  o f  t h e  r e t i r e m e n t  s y s t e m ,  t 
 

10 employer shall pay the remaining balance of actuarially required normal cost 
 

11 contributions each year that is not covered by the employee contributions. 
 

12 SECTION 7. 62.623 (1) of the statutes is amended to read: 
 

13 62.623 (1) Beginning on July 1, 2011, and ending on December 31, 2022 u p o n  

t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,   in 

any 
 

14 employee retirement system of a 1st class city, except as otherwise provided in a 
 

15 collective bargaining agreement entered into under subch. IV of ch. 111 and except 
 

16 as provided in sub. (2), employees shall pay all employee required contributions for 
 

17 funding benefits under the retirement system. The employer may not pay on behalf 
 

18 of an employee any of the employee's share of the required contributions. 
 

19 SECTION 8. 62.623 (3) of the statutes is created to read: 
 

20 62.623 (3) U p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  

7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  beginning on January 1, 2023, in any employee retirement 

system 
 

21 of a 1st class city, except as otherwise provided in a collective bargaining agreement 
 

22 entered into under subch. IV of ch. 111 and except as provided in sub. (2), employees 
 

23 shall pay half of all actuarially required normal cost contributions for funding 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 5 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 5 - 
 

 

 

24 benefits under the retirement system. The employer may not pay on behalf of an 
 

25 employee any of the employee's share of the actuarially required contributions. 

R e g a r d l e s s  o f  f u n d i n g  s t a t u s  o f  t h e  r e t i r e m e n t  s y s t e m ,  the 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 6 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 11 

 

 
 

1 employer shall pay the remaining balance of actuarially required normal cost 
 

2 contributions each year that is not covered by the employee contributions. 
 

3 SECTION 9. 66.0621 (3m) of the statutes is amended to read: 
 

4 66.0621 (3m) A county in which an electronics and information technology 
 

5 manufacturing zone designated under s. 238.396 (1m) exists may issue bonds under 
 

6 this section whose principal and interest are paid only through sales and use tax 
 

7 revenues imposed by the county under s. 77.70 (1). The county shall be and continue 
 

8 without power to repeal such tax or obstruct the collection of the tax until all such 
 

9 payments have been made or provided for. 
 

10 SECTION 10. 77.70 of the statutes is renumbered 77.70 (1) and amended to read: 
 

11 77.70 (1) Any county desiring to may impose county sales and use taxes under 
 

12 this subchapter may do so by the adoption of an ordinance, stating its purpose and 
 

13 referring to this subchapter. The rate of the tax imposed under this section 
 

14 subsection is 0.5 percent of the sales price or purchase price. Except as provided in 
 

15 s. 66.0621 (3m), the county sales and use taxes imposed under this subsection may 
 

16 be imposed only for the purpose of directly reducing the property tax levy and only 
 

17 in their entirety as provided in this subchapter. That ordinance shall be effective on 
 

18 the first day of January, the first day of April, the first day of July or the first day of 
 

19 October January 1, April 1, July 1, or October 1. A certified copy of that ordinance 
 

20 shall be delivered to the secretary of revenue at least 120 days prior to its effective 
 

21 date. The repeal of any such ordinance shall be effective on December 31. A certified 
 

22 copy of a repeal ordinance shall be delivered to the secretary of revenue at least 120 
 

23 days before the effective date of the repeal. Except as provided under s. 77.60 (9), the 
 

24 department of revenue may not issue any assessment nor or act on any claim for a 
 

25 refund or any claim for an adjustment under s. 77.585 after the end of the calendar 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 10 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 7 - 
 

 

 

 

1 year that is 4 years after the year in which the county has enacted a repeal ordinance 
 

2 under this section subsection. 
 

3 SECTION 11. 77.70 (2) of the statutes is created to read: 
 

4 77.70 (2) (a) In addition to the taxes imposed under sub. (1), a county in which 
 

5 a 1st class city is located may adopt an ordinance to impose sales and use taxes under 
 

6 this subchapter at the rate of 1 percent of the sales price or purchase price. An 
 

7 ordinance adopted under this paragraph shall be effective on October 1 of the year 
 

8 following adoption of the ordinance. No county may impose a tax under this 
 

9 subsection unless the county contributes to its retirement system's unfunded 
 

10 actuarially accrued liability from sources other than the tax at least $54,663,000 in 
 

11 2021 and in each year thereafter until the retirement system is determined by the 
 

12 county's actuary to be fully funded. The required unfunded actuarial accrued 

liability payments, amortization, assumed rate of return and other elements of this 

section shall only take place if there is a successful ordinance.   
 

13 (b) The taxes imposed under par. (a) may be imposed only in their entirety as 
 

14 provided in this subchapter and the revenue from the taxes shall be used as follows: 
 

15 1. Beginning with the first full calendar year after the first full calendar year 
 

16 that taxes are imposed under this subsection, the county shall use 16.5 percent of the 
 

17 revenue for a direct property tax relief credit to appear on the property tax bills of 
 

18 all property subject to taxation in the county. The county shall allocate to each such 
 

19 property a credit equal to the property's proportionate share of the amount to be 
 

20 distributed under this subdivision, determined on the basis of the property's 
 

21 assessed value. In order to calculate the proportionate share to be allocated to each 
 

22 property, the county shall use the gross equalized value for all properties in the 
 

23 county, including properties in a tax incremental district. Credit amounts 
 

24 attributable to property in a tax incremental district shall be distributed to each of 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 8 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 11 

 

 
 

1 the taxing jurisdictions overlying the tax incremental district, in addition to the 
 

2 amounts listed in subd. 2. 
 

3 2. Beginning with the first full calendar year after the first full calendar year 
 

4 that taxes are imposed under this subsection, the county shall distribute 16.5 
 

5 percent of the revenue to the municipalities in the county for a direct property tax 
 

6 relief credit to appear on the property tax bills of all property subject to taxation in 
 

7 each such municipality. The county shall distribute to each municipality its 
 

8 proportionate share of the amount to be distributed under this subdivision on the 
 

9 basis of the equalized value of all taxable property in municipality. The municipality 
 

10 shall allocate to each such property in the municipality a credit equal to the 
 

11 property's proportionate share of the amount to be distributed by the municipality 
 

12 under this subdivision, determined on the basis of the property's assessed value. 
 

13 Credits for properties in a tax incremental district may be retained by the 
 

14 municipality as if those credits were payments made by the property owner. 
 

15 Payments by the county to municipalities under this subdivision shall be made in 3 
 

16 equal installments on February 15, May 15, and July 15 of each year. The county 
 

17 shall use the estimated amount of sales tax revenue collected under this subsection 
 

18 in the previous year to determine the amount of the payments to distribute each year 
 

19 under this subdivision. The county shall reconcile any underpayment or 
 

20 overpayment under this subdivision in the year following the year of the 
 

21 underpayment or overpayment. 
 

22 3. In addition to the payment required under par. (a), the county shall use 33.5 
 

23 percent of the revenue to reduce the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the 
 

24 retirement system established under chapter 201, laws of 1937. If the retirement 
 

25 system is determined by the county's actuary to be fully funded, the county shall 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 10 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 9 - 
 

 

 

 

1 notify the department of revenue and shall use the amount under this subdivision 
 

2 to make investments that promote the county's financial sustainability, including by 
 

3 addressing critical deferred maintenance backlogs and eliminating or replacing 
 

4 outdated assets. For purposes of making the determination under this subdivision, 
 

5 the unfunded actuarial accrued liability shall be amortized over a period that is no 
 

6 longer than 30 years, and the county's retirement system may direct its actuary to 
 

7 reduce the investment return assumption at any time, but the investment return 
 

8 assumption may not be reduced below 5.0 percent, nor increased above 7.25 

percent. Notwithstanding any 
 

9 actuarial rule to the contrary, the amortization period shall be 30 years. The 
 

10 amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability existing at the time of the 

passage of the ordinance shall be amortized so that the unfunded actuarialaccrued 

liability is expected to be paid 
 

11 within 30 years from the first day after the first full year of tax collection under this 
 

12 subsection, but may be paid sooner based on the accelerated payments provided by 
 

13 the tax imposed under this subsection. Future unfunded actuarial accrued liability due 

to factors such as market returns 
 

14 and standard accounting practices may be . amortized based on standard accounting 

practice.  Each yearhe county shall pay the full annual amortization payment of 

unfunded actuarially accrued 
 

15 liability that is not otherwise paid by the contributions under this subdivision. The 
 

16 county may begin using the revenue from the tax imposed under this subsection for 
 

17 the purpose of this subdivision in the first full calendar year that the taxes are 
 

18 imposed. 
 

19 4. The county shall distribute 33.5 percent of the revenue to the 1st class city 
 

20 located within the county, and the 1st class city shall use the amount to reduce the 
 

21 unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the retirement system established under 
 

22 chapter 396, laws of 1937. If the retirement system is determined by the 

retirement system’s 
 

23 actuary to be fully funded, the city shall notify the department of revenue and 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 10 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 11 

 

 
 

1 shall use the amount under this subdivision to make investments that promote the 
 

2 city’s financial sustainability, including by  addressing critical deferred 
 

3 maintenance backlogs and eliminating or replacing outdated assets. For purposes 
 

4 of making the determination under this subdivision, the unfunded actuarial accrued 
 

5 liability shall be amortized over a period that is no longer than 30 years, and the city's 
 

6 retirement system may direct its actuary to reduce the investment return 
 

7 assumption at any time, but the investment return assumption may not be reduced 
 

8 below ,5.0% nor increased above 
 

9 7.25 percent. The amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 

existing at the time of the passage of the ordinance shall be amortized so that 

the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
 

10 is expected to be paid within 30 years from the first day after the first full year of tax 
 

11 collection under this subsection, but may be paid sooner based on the accelerated 
 

12 payments provided by the tax imposed under this subsection. Future unfunded 

actuarial accrued liability due to factors such asmarket returns and standard 

accounting practices may be . amortized according to standard accounting 

principalsE a c h  y e a r  the city shall pay the full annual amortization 

payment of 
 

13 unfunded actuarially accrued liability that is not otherwise paid by the contributions 
 

14 under this subdivision. The city may begin using the revenue received under this 
 

15 subdivision for the purpose of this subdivision in the first full calendar year that the 
 

16 taxes under this subsection are imposed. Payments by the county to a 1st class city 
 

17 under this subdivision shall be made in 3 equal installments on February 15, May 
 

18 15, and July 15 of each year. TheF o r  t h e  f i r s t  y e a r  o f  s a l e s  t a x  

c o l l e c t e d  t h e  C o u n t y  w i l l  d i s t r i b u t e  t h e  p r o p o r t i o n a t e  

a m o u n t  o f  a c t u a l  s a l e s  t a x  c o l l e c t e d ,  a n d  i n c l u d e  a n y  

u n p a i d  a m o u n t s  i n  t h e  n e x t  y e a r ’ s  e s t i m a t e .   F o r  

s u b s e q u e n t  y e a r s ,  t county shall use the estimated amount of sales tax 
 

19 revenue collected under this subsection in the previous year to determine the amount 
 

20 of the payments to distribute each year under this subdivision. The county shall 
 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 10 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 11 
 

 

 

21 reconcile any underpayment or overpayment under this subdivision in the year 
 

22 following the year of the underpayment or overpayment. 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 12 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 11 

 

 

 

1 5. Notwithstanding subds. 2. and 4., no 1st class city may receive revenue 
 

2 under subd. 2. or 4. unless it complies with all of the following: 
 

3 a. The ratio of law enforcement officers and members of the paid fire 
 

4 department, as defined in s. 213.10 (1g), employed by the city to the city's total 
 

5 population in any year in which the tax is imposed under par. (a) is at least equal to 
 

6 the ratio, as of December 31, 2021, of law enforcement officers and members of the 
 

7 paid fire department to the city's total population. 
 

8 b. the city 
 

9 expends none of therevenue from the tax imposed under par. (a) on the operation, 

maintenance, or expansion of 
 

10 a rail fixed guideway transportation system, as defined in s. 85.066 (1), in the city. 
 

11 c. The city and its agencies contributes to its retirement system from sources 

other than the tax 
 

12 imposed under par. at least $84,500,000 in 2023and in each year thereafter until 
 

13 the retirement system is determined by the city's actuary to be fully funded. 
 

14 (c) The ordinance imposing the taxes under par. (a) shall be repealed on October 
 

15 1 of the year following the year in which the department of revenue receives 
 

notification under par. (b) 3. and 4. that (i) the county retirement system total unfunded 

actuarily accrued liability is less than one year of projected sales tax received by the county 

under par (b)(3), and that (ii) the city retirement system total unfunded actuarily accured 

laibiltiy is less than one year of projected sales tax received by the city under par (b)(4).   

16 Except as provided under s. 77.60 (9), the department of revenue may not issue an 
 

17 assessment or act on a claim for a refund or for an adjustment under s. 77.585 after 
 

18 the end of the calendar year that is 4 years after the year in which the ordinance is 
 

19 repealed. 
 

20 (d) After the date on which the department of revenue receives notification 
 

21 under par. (b) 3. and 4. that both retirement systems are fully funded, the county may 
 

22 adopt an ordinance to extend the imposition of the taxes imposed under par. (a) for 
 

23 a period not to exceed 20 years. The taxes imposed under this paragraph are subject 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 11 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 11 - 
 

 

 
 

1 to the requirements under par. (b). An ordinance adopted under this paragraph shall 
 

2 be effective on October 1 of the year following the year in which the ordinance is 
 

3 adopted. The repeal of any such ordinance shall be effective on December 31, and 
 

4 a certified copy of a repeal ordinance shall be delivered to the secretary of revenue 
 

5 at least 120 days before the effective date. Except as provided under s. 77.60 (9), the 
 

6 department of revenue may not issue an assessment or act on a claim for a refund 
 

7 or a claim for an adjustment under s. 77.585 after the end of the calendar year that 
 

8 is 4 years after the year in which the county has enacted a repeal ordinance under 
 

9 this paragraph. 
 

****NOTE: This provision provides that, if the tax is extended, the revenue must be 
used as provided under par. (b). Please let us know if that is not consistent with your 
intent. 

 

10 SECTION 12. 77.76 (3) of the statutes is amended to read: 
 

11 77.76 (3) From the appropriation under s. 20.835 (4) (g) the department of 
 

12 revenue shall distribute 98.25 percent of the county taxes reported for each enacting 
 

13 county, minus the county portion of the retailers' discounts, to the county and shall 
 

14 indicate the taxes reported by each taxpayer, no later than 75 days following the last 
 

15 day of the calendar quarter in which such amounts were reported. In this subsection, 
 

16 the “county portion of the retailers' discount" is the amount determined by 
 

17 multiplying the total retailers' discount by a fraction the numerator of which is the 
 

18 gross county sales and use taxes payable and the denominator of which is the sum 
 

19 of the gross state and county sales and use taxes payable. The county taxes 
 

20 distributed shall be increased or decreased to reflect subsequent refunds, audit 
 

21 adjustments, and all other adjustments of the county taxes previously distributed. 
 

22 Interest paid on refunds of county sales and use taxes shall be paid from the 
 

23 appropriation under s. 20.835 (4) (g) at the rate paid by this state under s. 77.60 (1) 





LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 12 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 13 - 
 

 

 

 

1 (a). The Except as provided in s. 77.70 (2) (b) and (d), a county may retain the amount 
 

2 it receives or it may distribute all or a portion of the amount it receives to the towns, 
 

3 villages, cities, and school districts in the county. After receiving notice from the 
 

4 department of revenue, a county shall reimburse the department for the amount by 
 

5 which any refunds, including interest, of the county's sales and use taxes that the 
 

6 department pays or allows in a reporting period exceeds the amount of the county's 
 

7 sales and use taxes otherwise payable to the county under this subsection for the 
 

8 same or subsequent reporting period. Any county receiving a report under this 
 

9 subsection is subject to the duties of confidentiality to which the department of 
 

10 revenue is subject under s. 77.61 (5) and (6). 
 

11 SECTION 13. 79.05 (2) (c) of the statutes, as affected by 2021 Wisconsin Act 61, 
 

12 is amended to read: 
 

13 79.05 (2) (c) Its municipal budget; exclusive of principal and interest on 
 

14 long-term debt and exclusive of revenue sharing payments under s. 66.0305, 
 

15 payments of premiums under s. 66.0137 (5) (c) 1. and 1m., expenditures of payments 
 

16 due to the termination of a tax incremental district under s. 79.096 (3), recycling fee 
 

17 payments under s. 289.645, expenditures of grant payments under s. 16.297 (1m), 
 

18 unreimbursed expenses related to an emergency declared under s. 323.10, 
 

19 expenditures from moneys received pursuant to P.L. 111-5, expenditures from 
 

20 moneys received pursuant to s. 77.70 (2) (b) 2. or 4., and expenditures made pursuant 
 

21 to a purchasing agreement with a school district whereby the municipality makes 
 

22 purchases on behalf of the school district; for the year of the statement under s. 
 

23 79.015 increased over its municipal budget as adjusted under sub. (6); exclusive of 
 

24 principal and interest on long-term debt and exclusive of revenue sharing payments 
 

25 under s. 66.0305, payments of premiums under s. 66.0137 (5) (c) 1. and 1m., 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 14 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 14 

 

 
 

1 expenditures of payments due to the termination of a tax incremental district under 
 

2 s. 79.096 (3), recycling fee payments under s. 289.645, expenditures of grant 
 

3 payments under s. 16.297 (1m), unreimbursed expenses related to an emergency 
 

4 declared under s. 323.10, expenditures from moneys received pursuant to P.L. 111-5, 
 

5 expenditures from moneys received pursuant to s. 77.70 (2) (b) 2. or 4., and 
 

6 expenditures made pursuant to a purchasing agreement with a school district 
 

7 whereby the municipality makes purchases on behalf of the school district; for the 
 

8 year before that year by less than the sum of the inflation factor and the valuation 
 

9 factor, rounded to the nearest 0.10 percent. 
 

10 SECTION 14. Laws of 1937, chapter 201, section 1 (4), as last affected by chapter 
 

11 357, laws of 1947, is amended to read: 
 

12 [Laws of 1937, chapter 201] Section 1 (4) “U p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  

o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  employee" shall mean any person 
 

13 regularly employed by the county at an annual wage or salary payable at stated 
 

14 intervals, including any person who is employed by the state but who receives part 
 

15 of his wage or salary from the county, but not including any person in the service of 
 

16 a county with a population of at least 750,000 who was never an employee of the 
 

17 county on or before December 31, 2022, and who is hired after that date. In the event 
 

18 of a question arising as to the right of any person in the service of the county to be 
 

19 classified as an employee under this act, the decision of the board shall be final. This 

paragraph does not impact any employee eligible to participate in a retirement 

plan established by a county under the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 

1990.  
 

20 SECTION 15. Laws of 1937, chapter 201, section 14A (1) is created to read: 
 

21 [Laws of 1937, chapter 201] Section 14A (1) The board of a system in a county 
 

22 with a population of at least 750,000 shall terminate the retirement system within 
 

23 a practicable time after the final payment has been made to members or their 
 

24 beneficiaries, in accordance with any requirements of the federal Internal Revenue 
 

25 Code.  This paragraph only applies if an ordinance has been adopted under s. 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 12 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 15 - 
 

 

77.70(2)(a). 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 16 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 16 

 

This paragraph does not impact any employee eligible to participate in a retirement 

plan established by a county under the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990.  

 

1 SECTION 16. Laws of 1937, chapter 201, section 21, as created by chapter 405, 
 

2 laws of 1965, is amended to read: 
 

3 [Laws of 1937, chapter 201] Section 21. For the purpose of best protecting the 
 

4 employese subject to this act by granting supervisory authority over each retirement 
 

5 system created hereunder to the governmental unit most involved therewith, it is 
 

6 declared to be the legislative policy that the future operation of each such retirement 
 

7 system is a matter of local affair and government and shall not be construed to be a 
 

8 matter of state-wide concern. Each county which is required to establish and 
 

9 maintain a retirement system pursuant to this act is hereby empowered, by county 
 

10 ordinance, to make any changes in such retirement system which hereafter may be 
 

11 deemed necessary or desirable for the continued operation of such retirement 
 

12 system, but no such change shall operate to diminish or impair the annuities, 
 

13 benefits or other rights of any person who is a member of such retirement system 
 

14 prior to the effective date of any such change. In a county that has established a 
 

15 retirement system pursuant to this act,u p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  a n  

o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  a the county and board shall 

continue to 
 

16 amend, create, and repeal ordinances and rules, administer benefits, discharge their 
 

17 duties with respect to the retirement system, and take any other actions necessary 
 

18 to administer the system and maintain the qualified tax status of the system under 
 

19 the Internal Revenue Code until the plan is terminated under section 14A (1) of this 
 

20 act. 
 

21 SECTION 17. Laws of 1937, chapter 396, section 1 (4) (e) 2m. is created to read: 
 

22 [Laws of 1937, chapter 396] Section 1 (4) (e) 2m. Who are in the service of a 1st 
 

23 class city in a county with a population of at least 750,000; who as of December 31, 
 

24 2022, had never been employees of the city, a housing authority in a 1st class city in 
 

25 a county with a population of at least 750,000, a redevelopment authority in a 1st 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 12 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 17 - 
 

 

 
 

1 class city in a county with a population of at least 750,000, the Milwaukee 
 

2 Metropolitan Sewerage District, the board of a public school district in a 1st class city 
 

3 in a county with a population of at least 750,000, or a special purpose district created 
 

4 under subch. II of. ch. 229 for which the sole sponsoring municipality is a 1st class 
 

5 city in a county with a population of at least 750,000; and who are hired after 

6 December 31, 2022. 

7 SECTION 18. Laws of 1937, chapter 396, section 15 (1), as created by chapter 
 

8 441, laws of 1947, is amended to read: 
 

9 [Laws of 1937, chapter 396] Section 15 (1) For the purpose of giving to cities of 
 

10 the first class the largest measure of self-government with respect to pension 
 

11 annuity and retirement systems compatible with the constitution and general law, 
 

12 it is hereby declared to be the legislative policy that all future amendments and 
 

13 alterations to this act are matters of local affair and government and shall not be 
 

14 construed as an enactment of statewide concern. Cities of the first class are hereby 
 

15 empowered to amend or alter the provisions of this act in the manner prescribed by 
 

16 section 66.01 of the statutes; provided that no such amendment or alteration shall 
 

17 modify the annuities, benefits or other rights of any persons who are members of the 
 

18 system prior to the effective date of such amendment or alteration. In a city that has 
 

19 established a retirement system pursuant to this act,u p o n  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  

a n  o r d i n a n c e  u n d e r  s .  7 7 . 7 0 ( 2 ) ( a ) ,  the city and board shall 
 

20 continue to amend, create, and repeal ordinances and rules, administer benefits, 
 

21 discharge their duties with respect to the retirement system, and take any other 
 

22 actions necessary to administer the system and maintain the qualified tax status of 
 

23 the system under the Internal Revenue Code until the plan is terminated under 
 

24 section 16A (1) of this act. 
 

25 SECTION 19. Laws of 1937, chapter 396, section 16A (1) is created to read: 



2021 - 2022 Legislature - 18 - LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 18 

 

 

 

1 [Laws of 1937, chapter 396] Section 16A (1) The  
 

2 retirement system shall be terminated within a practicable time after the final 

payment has been made 
 

3 to members or their beneficiaries, in accordance with any requirements of the federal 
 

4 Internal Revenue Code. 
 

5 SECTION 20. Nonstatutory provisions. 
 

6 (1) LOCAL GOVERNMENT FUNDING FORMULAS. Revenue collected from a sales and 
 

7 use tax imposed under s. 77.70 (2) (a) or (d) and expenditures made pursuant to s. 
 

8 77.70 (2) (b) shall have no effect on any local government funding formula or 

municipal aid payments. 
 

9 (2) STATEWIDE CONCERN. Notwithstanding any provision of chapter 201, laws 
 

10 of 1937, and chapter 396, laws of 1937, and subsequent amendments to those laws, 
 

11 the treatment of ss. 40.02 (48) (am) 23. and 24. and 40.21 (4g) and (4r), chapter 201, 
 

12 laws of 1937, sections 1 (4), 3 (1), 14A (1), and 21, and chapter 396, laws of 1937, 
 

13 sections 1 (4) (e) 2m., 3 (1), 15 (1), and 16A (1) is a matter of statewide concern and 
 

14 is not a matter of local affair or government. 
 

15 SECTION 21. Initial applicability. 
 

16 (1) COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS. The treatment of ss. 59.875 (2) (a) and 
 

17 (c) and 62.623 (1) and (3) first applies to an employee who is affected by a collective 
 

18 bargaining agreement that contains provisions inconsistent with this act on the day 
 

19 on which the collective bargaining agreement expires or is extended, modified, or 
 

20 renewed. 
 

7 SECTION X.1.  Laws of 1937, chapter 66, section 16A (1) is amended to read: 

8 66.0602 (2) (b) For purposes of par. (a), in 2018, and in each year thereafter, the base amount to 

which the limit under this section applies is the actual levy for the immediately preceding 

year, plus the amount of the payment under s. 79.096, 77.70 (2) (b) (1), and 77.70 (2) (b) (2) 

and the levy limit is the base amount multiplied by the valuation factor, minus the amount of 

the payment under s. 79.096, 77.70 (2) (b) (1), and 77.70 (2) (b) (2), except that the 



LRB-4525/P3 
JK&MIM:cjs 

SECTION 12 

2021 - 2022 Legislature - 19 - 
 

 

adjustments for payments received under s. 79.096, 77.70 (2) (b) (1), and 77.70 (2) (b) 

(2) do not apply to payments received under s. 79.096 (3) for a tax incremental district that 

has been terminated. 

9 SECTION X.2 59.60 (5) (g) of the statutes is amended to read: 

10 59.60 (5) (g) A complete summary of all the budget estimates and a statement of 

the  

11 property tax levy required if funds were appropriated on the basis of these 

estimates. In  

12 determining the property tax levy required, the director shall deduct from the 

total  

13 estimated expenditures the estimated amount of revenue from sources other than 

the  

14 property tax levy and shall deduct the amount of any surplus at the close of the 

preceding  

15 fiscal year not yet appropriated and sales tax collected in the current year, which 

is to  

16 be paid under 77.70 (2) (b) (1), and 77.70 (2) (b)   . The board, by two-thirds vote, 

may  

17 adopt a resolution before the adoption of the tax levy authorizing the use of the 

surplus  

18 fund in whole or in part as a sinking fund for the redemption or repurchase of 

bonds or to  

19 provide funds for emergency needs under sub. (9), but for no other purposes, 

except as  

21 (END) 



Proration based upon employer contrib. GC Police Fire Water MPS MMSD Veolia WCD HACM

due for 1/31/2023 (from 1/1/2021 valuation) 18.53% 43.70% 18.36% 2.02% 13.91% 2.13% 0.13% 0.43% 0.80%

assuming contribution rates of 17.22% GC, 47.47% PD, 51.44% FD

DRAFT - 2021-11-12



Year

Contributions: 

UAAL + Normal - 

City only

Contributions: 

UAAL + Normal - 

Full (est.) (million)

GC Police Fire Water MPS MMSD Veolia WCD HACM Total

2021 68,375,000            84.84                     15.72      37.07      15.58      1.71        11.80      1.81        0.11        0.36        0.68        84.84      

2022 69,973,000            86.83                     16.09      37.94      15.94      1.75        12.08      1.85        0.11        0.37        0.69        86.83      

2023 152,681,000          189.45                   35.11      82.79      34.78      3.82        26.36      4.03        0.24        0.81        1.51        189.45    

2024 143,712,000          178.32                   33.05      77.92      32.74      3.60        24.81      3.80        0.23        0.76        1.42        178.32    

2025 143,503,000          178.07                   33.00      77.81      32.69      3.59        24.77      3.79        0.23        0.76        1.42        178.07    

2026 143,414,000          177.95                   32.98      77.76      32.67      3.59        24.76      3.79        0.23        0.76        1.42        177.95    

2027 143,045,000          177.50                   32.90      77.56      32.59      3.58        24.69      3.78        0.23        0.76        1.42        177.50    

2028 142,455,000          176.76                   32.76      77.24      32.45      3.57        24.59      3.76        0.23        0.75        1.41        176.76    

2029 141,900,000          176.08                   32.63      76.94      32.33      3.55        24.50      3.75        0.22        0.75        1.40        176.08    

2030 141,409,000          175.47                   32.52      76.68      32.21      3.54        24.41      3.74        0.22        0.75        1.40        175.47    

2031 140,893,000          174.83                   32.40      76.40      32.10      3.53        24.32      3.72        0.22        0.75        1.39        174.83    

2032 140,147,000          173.90                   32.23      75.99      31.93      3.51        24.19      3.70        0.22        0.74        1.39        173.90    

2033 138,892,000          172.34                   31.94      75.31      31.64      3.48        23.98      3.67        0.22        0.74        1.37        172.34    

2034 137,300,000          170.37                   31.57      74.45      31.28      3.44        23.70      3.63        0.22        0.73        1.36        170.37    

2035 135,926,000          168.66                   31.26      73.70      30.97      3.40        23.46      3.59        0.22        0.72        1.35        168.66    

2036 134,612,000          167.03                   30.96      72.99      30.67      3.37        23.24      3.56        0.21        0.71        1.33        167.03    

2037 133,421,000          165.56                   30.68      72.34      30.39      3.34        23.03      3.53        0.21        0.71        1.32        165.56    

2038 132,577,000          164.51                   30.49      71.89      30.20      3.32        22.89      3.50        0.21        0.70        1.31        164.51    

2039 131,692,000          163.41                   30.28      71.41      30.00      3.30        22.73      3.48        0.21        0.70        1.30        163.41    

2040 130,829,000          162.34                   30.09      70.94      29.80      3.27        22.58      3.46        0.21        0.69        1.29        162.34    

2041 129,905,000          161.19                   29.87      70.44      29.59      3.25        22.42      3.43        0.21        0.69        1.29        161.19    

2042 128,785,000          159.80                   29.62      69.83      29.34      3.22        22.23      3.40        0.20        0.68        1.27        159.80    

2043 127,490,000          158.20                   29.32      69.13      29.04      3.19        22.01      3.37        0.20        0.67        1.26        158.20    

2044 125,988,000          156.33                   28.97      68.31      28.70      3.15        21.75      3.33        0.20        0.67        1.25        156.33    

2045 124,284,000          154.22                   28.58      67.39      28.31      3.11        21.45      3.28        0.20        0.66        1.23        154.22    

2046 122,491,000          151.99                   28.17      66.42      27.90      3.07        21.15      3.24        0.19        0.65        1.21        151.99    

2047 120,564,000          149.60                   27.73      65.37      27.47      3.02        20.81      3.19        0.19        0.64        1.19        149.60    

2048 118,401,000          146.92                   27.23      64.20      26.97      2.96        20.44      3.13        0.19        0.63        1.17        146.92    

2049 115,988,000          143.92                   26.67      62.89      26.42      2.90        20.02      3.06        0.18        0.61        1.15        143.92    

2050 113,501,000          140.84                   26.10      61.54      25.86      2.84        19.59      3.00        0.18        0.60        1.12        140.84    

2051 110,916,000          137.63                   25.51      60.14      25.27      2.78        19.15      2.93        0.18        0.59        1.10        137.63    

For comparison

Estimate for 2022 (1/1/2021 val. - due 1/1/22) 13.78      39.74      16.39      1.50        10.34      1.58        0.09        0.32        0.61        84.35      

31.13      81.60      33.22      3.47        23.95      3.67        0.22        0.73        1.37        179.37    

EST. FOR PROPOSED LEGISLATION -- Basis: 30 yr amort.; rate = 7.25%; City = GC, PD, FD; based upon spreadsheet from Budget Office dated around 10-26-

2021; breakdown by agency based upon projected 2023 employer contributions (due 1/1/2022) from valuation dated 1/1/2021

Estimate for 2023 using model from CavMac 

(using 7.5% return; 15 yr amort.; stable contrib 

policy in place)

DRAFT - 2021-11-12



Year

Contributions: 

UAAL + Normal - 

City only (millions)

Contributions: 

UAAL + Normal - 

Full (est.)

GC Police Fire Water MPS MMSD Veolia WCD HACM Total

2022 250.34                   310.63                   57.57      135.74    57.03      6.26        43.22      6.61        0.40        1.33        2.48        310.63    

2023 250.43                   310.75                   57.59      135.79    57.05      6.27        43.23      6.62        0.40        1.33        2.48        310.75    

2024 250.63                   310.99                   57.64      135.90    57.10      6.27        43.27      6.62        0.40        1.33        2.48        310.99    

2025 250.62                   310.98                   57.63      135.89    57.09      6.27        43.26      6.62        0.40        1.33        2.48        310.98    

2026 250.89                   311.32                   57.70      136.04    57.16      6.28        43.31      6.63        0.40        1.33        2.48        311.32    

2027 250.89                   311.32                   57.70      136.04    57.16      6.28        43.31      6.63        0.40        1.33        2.48        311.32    

2028 250.48                   310.81                   57.60      135.82    57.06      6.27        43.24      6.62        0.40        1.33        2.48        310.81    

2029 250.01                   310.22                   57.49      135.56    56.96      6.26        43.16      6.61        0.40        1.32        2.47        310.22    

2030 249.62                   309.74                   57.40      135.35    56.87      6.25        43.09      6.60        0.40        1.32        2.47        309.74    

2031 249.39                   309.45                   57.35      135.23    56.81      6.24        43.05      6.59        0.39        1.32        2.47        309.45    

2032 54.86                     68.07                     12.62      29.75      12.50      1.37        9.47        1.45        0.09        0.29        0.54        68.07      

2033 53.08                     65.86                     12.21      28.78      12.09      1.33        9.16        1.40        0.08        0.28        0.53        65.86      

2034 50.82                     63.06                     11.69      27.56      11.58      1.27        8.77        1.34        0.08        0.27        0.50        63.06      

2035 48.85                     60.62                     11.23      26.49      11.13      1.22        8.43        1.29        0.08        0.26        0.48        60.62      

2036 47.09                     58.43                     10.83      25.53      10.73      1.18        8.13        1.24        0.07        0.25        0.47        58.43      

2037 45.31                     56.22                     10.42      24.57      10.32      1.13        7.82        1.20        0.07        0.24        0.45        56.22      

2038 43.77                     54.31                     10.07      23.73      9.97        1.10        7.56        1.16        0.07        0.23        0.43        54.31      

2039 42.32                     52.51                     9.73        22.95      9.64        1.06        7.31        1.12        0.07        0.22        0.42        52.51      

2040 40.73                     50.54                     9.37        22.08      9.28        1.02        7.03        1.08        0.06        0.22        0.40        50.54      

2041 39.22                     48.67                     9.02        21.27      8.93        0.98        6.77        1.04        0.06        0.21        0.39        48.67      

2042 37.53                     46.57                     8.63        20.35      8.55        0.94        6.48        0.99        0.06        0.20        0.37        46.57      

2043 35.75                     44.36                     8.22        19.38      8.14        0.89        6.17        0.94        0.06        0.19        0.35        44.36      

2044 33.92                     42.09                     7.80        18.39      7.73        0.85        5.86        0.90        0.05        0.18        0.34        42.09      

2045 31.94                     39.63                     7.35        17.32      7.28        0.80        5.51        0.84        0.05        0.17        0.32        39.63      

2046 29.90                     37.10                     6.88        16.21      6.81        0.75        5.16        0.79        0.05        0.16        0.30        37.10      

2047 27.95                     34.68                     6.43        15.16      6.37        0.70        4.82        0.74        0.04        0.15        0.28        34.68      

2048 25.81                     32.03                     5.94        13.99      5.88        0.65        4.46        0.68        0.04        0.14        0.26        32.03      

2049 23.92                     29.68                     5.50        12.97      5.45        0.60        4.13        0.63        0.04        0.13        0.24        29.68      

2050 22.14                     27.47                     5.09        12.00      5.04        0.55        3.82        0.58        0.04        0.12        0.22        27.47      

2051 20.59                     25.55                     4.73        11.16      4.69        0.52        3.55        0.54        0.03        0.11        0.20        25.55      

For comparison

Estimate for 2022 (1/1/2021 val. - due 1/1/22) 13.78      39.74      16.39      1.50        10.34      1.58        0.09        0.32        0.61        84.35      

31.13      81.60      33.22      3.47        23.95      3.67        0.22        0.73        1.37        179.37    

EST. FOR ACTUARIAL STANDARDS FOR PLAN CLOSURE -- Basis: 10 yr amort.; rate = 7.00%; City = GC, PD, FD; based upon Actuary's estimated 

calculations dated around 9-14-2021; breakdown by agency based upon projected 2022 wages from valuation

Estimate for 2023 using model from CavMac 

(using 7.5% return; 15 yr amort.; stable contrib 

policy in place)

DRAFT - 2021-11-12



Year

Contributions: 

UAAL + Normal - 

City only (millions)

Contributions: 

UAAL + Normal - 

Full (est.)

GC Police Fire Water MPS MMSD Veolia WCD HACM Total

2022 69.97                     84.47                     13.50      40.12      16.36      1.51        10.39      1.59        0.10        0.32        0.60        84.47      

2023 145.95                   179.37                   31.13      81.60      33.22      3.47        23.95      3.67        0.22        0.73        1.37        179.37    

2024 149.24                   183.13                   31.57      83.78      33.89      3.52        24.29      3.72        0.22        0.74        1.39        183.13    

2025 152.53                   186.95                   32.06      85.88      34.59      3.58        24.67      3.78        0.23        0.76        1.41        186.95    

2026 156.07                   191.02                   32.56      88.14      35.36      3.63        25.05      3.83        0.23        0.77        1.44        191.02    

2027 159.48                   195.01                   33.10      90.28      36.10      3.69        25.47      3.90        0.23        0.78        1.46        195.01    

2028 140.74                   168.41                   25.78      82.03      32.93      2.88        19.84      3.04        0.18        0.61        1.14        168.41    

2029 143.49                   171.65                   26.24      83.58      33.67      2.93        20.19      3.09        0.19        0.62        1.16        171.65    

2030 146.41                   175.09                   26.72      85.28      34.42      2.98        20.55      3.15        0.19        0.63        1.18        175.09    

2031 149.55                   178.76                   27.21      87.15      35.19      3.04        20.94      3.20        0.19        0.64        1.20        178.76    

2032 152.58                   182.34                   27.72      88.82      36.04      3.09        21.33      3.26        0.20        0.65        1.22        182.34    

2033 151.61                   178.91                   25.43      89.45      36.73      2.84        19.57      2.99        0.18        0.60        1.12        178.91    

2034 153.74                   181.57                   25.93      90.39      37.41      2.89        19.95      3.05        0.18        0.61        1.14        181.57    

2035 156.34                   184.74                   26.46      91.83      38.06      2.95        20.36      3.12        0.19        0.62        1.17        184.74    

2036 159.42                   188.42                   27.02      93.72      38.68      3.01        20.79      3.18        0.19        0.64        1.19        188.42    

2037 162.48                   192.10                   27.59      95.65      39.25      3.08        21.22      3.25        0.19        0.65        1.22        192.10    

2038 134.56                   157.63                   21.50      80.53      32.53      2.40        16.54      2.53        0.15        0.51        0.95        157.63    

2039 137.72                   161.29                   21.96      82.53      33.23      2.45        16.89      2.59        0.15        0.52        0.97        161.29    

2040 140.78                   164.85                   22.43      84.30      34.06      2.50        17.25      2.64        0.16        0.53        0.99        164.85    

2041 144.10                   168.70                   22.92      86.19      35.00      2.56        17.63      2.70        0.16        0.54        1.01        168.70    

2042 147.37                   172.51                   23.42      87.89      36.06      2.61        18.02      2.76        0.17        0.55        1.03        172.51    

2043 186.23                   217.36                   29.00      111.51    45.73      3.23        22.31      3.41        0.20        0.68        1.28        217.36    

2044 190.33                   222.16                   29.66      113.53    47.14      3.31        22.82      3.49        0.21        0.70        1.31        222.16    

2045 194.38                   226.94                   30.33      115.53    48.52      3.38        23.34      3.57        0.21        0.72        1.34        226.94    

2046 198.55                   231.86                   31.03      117.60    49.91      3.46        23.88      3.65        0.22        0.73        1.37        231.86    

2047 202.95                   237.03                   31.76      119.84    51.36      3.54        24.43      3.74        0.22        0.75        1.40        237.03    

2048 134.67                   160.28                   25.48      75.19      33.99      2.66        18.36      2.81        0.17        0.56        1.05        160.28    

2049 137.66                   163.88                   26.09      76.66      34.91      2.72        18.80      2.88        0.17        0.58        1.08        163.88    

2050 140.68                   167.53                   26.71      78.27      35.69      2.79        19.25      2.95        0.18        0.59        1.10        167.53    

2051 143.86                   171.36                   27.36      80.02      36.48      2.86        19.71      3.02        0.18        0.60        1.13        171.36    

EST. FOR CURRENT BASE -- Basis: 15 yr amort.; rate = 7.50%; City = GC, PD, FD; based upon Actuary's model dated around 8-31-2021; breakdown by agency 

based upon projected 2022 wages from valuation

DRAFT - 2021-11-12





City of Milwaukee Employes' Retirement System Model
Results are Shown for: All Members Participating in CMERS

Discount Rate: 7.50%

Actuarial Unfunded Effective Additional
Market Value Return on Actuarial Value Accrued Act. Accrued Funded Member Employer Contribution Member Employer Additional Total Employer Benefit Administrative Net Cash Normal Cost

Year of Assets Assets of Assets Liability Liability Ratio Rate Rate Rate Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributions Payments Expenses Flow Rate
2021 5,597,607,000       7.50% 5,389,377,000       6,732,479,000       1,343,102,000       80.1% 5.62% 14.35% 0.00% 32,836,000             82,695,000           -                          82,695,000            441,722,000          6,730,000              (332,921,000)         15.81%
2022 5,676,658,000       7.50% 5,553,512,000       6,870,157,000       1,316,645,000       80.8% 5.58% 14.35% 0.00% 33,165,000             84,467,000           -                          84,467,000            452,341,000          6,898,000              (341,607,000)         15.66%
2023 5,752,713,000       7.50% 5,618,609,000       7,008,659,000       1,390,050,000       80.2% 5.55% 29.65% 0.00% 33,553,000             179,370,000         -                          179,370,000          466,269,000          7,070,000              (260,416,000)         15.54%
2024 5,922,290,000       7.50% 5,921,295,000       7,144,087,000       1,222,792,000       82.9% 5.51% 29.65% 0.00% 33,962,000             183,133,000         -                          183,133,000          480,261,000          7,247,000              (270,413,000)         15.42%
2025 6,094,380,000       7.50% 6,094,380,000       7,276,127,000       1,181,747,000       83.8% 5.48% 29.65% 0.00% 34,399,000             186,948,000         -                          186,948,000          493,236,000          7,428,000              (279,317,000)         15.32%
2026 6,270,307,000       7.50% 6,270,307,000       7,405,744,000       1,135,437,000       84.7% 5.45% 29.65% 0.00% 34,881,000             191,023,000         -                          191,023,000          506,716,000          7,614,000              (288,426,000)         15.22%
2027 6,450,158,000       7.50% 6,450,158,000       7,532,390,000       1,082,232,000       85.6% 5.43% 29.65% 0.00% 35,368,000             195,005,000         -                          195,005,000          520,449,000          7,804,000              (297,880,000)         15.14%
2028 6,633,866,000       7.50% 6,633,866,000       7,655,620,000       1,021,754,000       86.7% 5.40% 25.38% 0.00% 35,831,000             168,412,000         -                          168,412,000          534,782,000          7,999,000              (338,538,000)         15.05%
2029 6,788,200,000       7.50% 6,788,200,000       7,774,416,000       986,216,000          87.3% 5.37% 25.38% 0.00% 36,321,000             171,650,000         -                          171,650,000          549,184,000          8,199,000              (349,412,000)         14.98%
2030 6,942,977,000       7.50% 6,942,977,000       7,888,493,000       945,516,000          88.0% 5.35% 25.38% 0.00% 36,858,000             175,088,000         -                          175,088,000          562,238,000          8,404,000              (358,696,000)         14.92%
2031 7,099,888,000       7.50% 7,099,888,000       7,999,111,000       899,223,000          88.8% 5.33% 25.38% 0.00% 37,445,000             178,758,000         -                          178,758,000          575,328,000          8,614,000              (367,739,000)         14.87%
2032 7,259,354,000       7.50% 7,259,354,000       8,106,092,000       846,738,000          89.6% 5.31% 25.38% 0.00% 38,029,000             182,342,000         -                          182,342,000          588,050,000          8,829,000              (376,508,000)         14.82%
2033 7,421,847,000       7.50% 7,421,847,000       8,209,572,000       787,725,000          90.4% 5.29% 24.52% 0.00% 38,593,000             178,908,000         -                          178,908,000          601,512,000          9,050,000              (393,061,000)         14.75%
2034 7,579,255,000       7.50% 7,579,255,000       8,308,449,000       729,194,000          91.2% 5.27% 24.52% 0.00% 39,087,000             181,573,000         -                          181,573,000          614,022,000          9,276,000              (402,638,000)         14.69%
2035 7,738,660,000       7.50% 7,738,660,000       8,403,032,000       664,372,000          92.1% 5.25% 24.52% 0.00% 39,683,000             184,744,000         -                          184,744,000          625,219,000          9,508,000              (410,300,000)         14.65%
2036 7,902,220,000       7.50% 7,902,220,000       8,494,704,000       592,484,000          93.0% 5.23% 24.52% 0.00% 40,383,000             188,419,000         -                          188,419,000          635,577,000          9,746,000              (416,521,000)         14.61%
2037 8,071,764,000       7.50% 8,071,764,000       8,584,459,000       512,695,000          94.0% 5.22% 24.52% 0.00% 41,089,000             192,095,000         -                          192,095,000          645,512,000          9,990,000              (422,318,000)         14.59%
2038 8,248,180,000       7.50% 8,248,180,000       8,672,595,000       424,415,000          95.1% 5.21% 19.60% 0.00% 41,892,000             157,632,000         -                          157,632,000          653,908,000          10,240,000            (464,624,000)         14.58%
2039 8,392,678,000       7.50% 8,392,678,000       8,760,996,000       368,318,000          95.8% 5.20% 19.60% 0.00% 42,759,000             161,288,000         -                          161,288,000          661,923,000          10,496,000            (468,372,000)         14.58%
2040 8,544,301,000       7.50% 8,544,301,000       8,850,359,000       306,058,000          96.5% 5.19% 19.60% 0.00% 43,614,000             164,854,000         -                          164,854,000          669,238,000          10,758,000            (471,528,000)         14.59%
2041 8,704,192,000       7.50% 8,704,192,000       8,941,422,000       237,230,000          97.3% 5.18% 19.60% 0.00% 44,541,000             168,703,000         -                          168,703,000          675,601,000          11,027,000            (473,384,000)         14.59%
2042 8,874,333,000       7.50% 8,874,333,000       9,035,488,000       161,155,000          98.2% 5.18% 19.60% 0.00% 45,471,000             172,506,000         -                          172,506,000          681,929,000          11,303,000            (475,255,000)         14.60%
2043 9,055,475,000       7.50% 9,055,475,000       9,132,949,000       77,474,000            99.2% 5.17% 24.22% 0.00% 46,411,000             217,363,000         -                          217,363,000          687,801,000          11,586,000            (435,613,000)         14.61%
2044 9,293,053,000       7.50% 9,293,053,000       9,234,555,000       (58,498,000)           100.6% 5.16% 24.22% 0.00% 47,390,000             222,161,000         -                          222,161,000          694,011,000          11,876,000            (436,336,000)         14.62%
2045 9,547,920,000       7.50% 9,547,920,000       9,340,369,000       (207,551,000)         102.2% 5.16% 24.22% 0.00% 48,380,000             226,942,000         -                          226,942,000          699,477,000          12,173,000            (436,328,000)         14.63%
2046 9,822,131,000       7.50% 9,822,131,000       9,451,493,000       (370,638,000)         103.9% 5.15% 24.22% 0.00% 49,410,000             231,863,000         -                          231,863,000          704,635,000          12,477,000            (435,839,000)         14.64%
2047 10,117,642,000     7.50% 10,117,642,000     9,568,758,000       (548,884,000)         105.7% 5.15% 24.22% 0.00% 50,495,000             237,034,000         -                          237,034,000          710,118,000          12,789,000            (435,378,000)         14.67%
2048 10,436,033,000     7.50% 10,436,033,000     9,692,485,000       (743,548,000)         107.7% 5.15% 15.99% 0.00% 51,591,000             160,280,000         -                          160,280,000          715,457,000          13,109,000            (516,695,000)         14.68%
2049 10,691,103,000     7.50% 10,691,103,000     9,823,306,000       (867,797,000)         108.8% 5.14% 15.99% 0.00% 52,743,000             163,879,000         -                          163,879,000          721,110,000          13,437,000            (517,925,000)         14.70%
2050 10,964,210,000     7.50% 10,964,210,000     9,961,693,000       (1,002,517,000)      110.1% 5.14% 15.99% 0.00% 53,923,000             167,526,000         -                          167,526,000          726,671,000          13,773,000            (518,995,000)         14.72%
2051 11,256,875,000     7.50% 11,256,875,000     10,108,318,000     (1,148,557,000)      111.4% 5.14% 15.99% 0.00% 55,165,000             171,359,000         -                          171,359,000          732,420,000          14,117,000            (520,013,000)         14.74%

1,295,268,000       5,528,020,000      -                          5,528,020,000       (12,512,996,000)    



Basic Website Metrics

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug. Sep. Oct.

Visits 5,408 4,692 5,041 5,153 4,673 5,542 5,405 4,842 4,479 4,188 4,592 4,678 5,442

Users 3,962 3,604 3,794 3,872 3,563 4,050 4,029 3,816 3,440 3,203 3,566 3,533 4,015

Page 
Views

17,983 14,468 15,407 16,062 13,815 17,353 15,863 13,287 11,539 11,411 11,868 12,240 16,046

Pages/ 
Visit

3.33 3.08 3.06 3.12 2.96 3.13 2.93 2.74 2.58 2.72 2.58 2.62 1.36

Ave. 
Visit

3:03 2:35 2:15 2:38 2:21 2:40 2:19 2:07 2:07 2:10 2:10 2:23 2:35

11/1/2021                                                                                                                     CMERS 2017 Redesign – World (Not ERS)

2020   2021



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VII. 

 

INFORMATIONAL 

 

Please be advised that the Annuity and Pension Board may vote to convene in closed session on the 

following item (A.), as provided in Section 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin State Statutes, to confer with legal 

counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely 

to become involved. The Board may then vote to reconvene in open session following the closed session. 

 

A. Pending Litigation Report.  

 B. Conferences. 

C. Class Action Income 2021 YTD. 

D. Adjusted Quarterly Cost Basis of Equity. 

E. Report on Bills. 

F. Deployment of Assets. 

G. Securities Lending Revenue and Budget Report. 

H. Preliminary Performance Report/Asset and Manager Allocation Pie Charts. 

 































YTD Market Value Change

December 31, 2020 Market Value including City Reserve & PABF Accounts 5,565,502,643$   

Monthly Cash Outflows thru
Retiree Payroll Expense (358,386,488)$      
PABF Payroll Expense (57,067)$               
Expenses Paid (11,383,152)$        
GPS Benefit Payments (11,885,784)$        

Sub-Total Monthly Cash Outflows (381,712,491)$     

Monthly Cash Inflows thru
Contributions 104,627,778$       
PABF Contribution 64,660$                

Sub-Total Monthly Contributions 104,692,438$      

City Reserve Fund Contribution 8,000,000$          

Capital Market Gain/(Loss) 932,828,156$      

6,229,310,747$   

Less City Reserve Account1 42,110,129$        

Less PABF Fund2 2,500$                 

6,187,198,118$   

1

2

  

November 15, 2021

Value including City Reserve & PABF Accounts as of 

November 15, 2021

PABF Fund balance equals the market value currently held in the PABF account.

The City Reserve Account balance equals the market value currently held in the Baird account.

November 15, 2021

November 15, 2021

Net Projected ERS Fund Value as of 

11/16/2021






